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General Insurance Corporation of India, Mumbai, India

Kenya Reinsurance Corporation Ltd; Nairobi, Kenya

East Africa Reinsurance Co.Ltd; Nairobi, Kenya

Oman Reinsurance Company, “SAOC” Oman

GIC- Bhutan Re Ltd; Bhutan

Asian Reinsurane Corporation, Bangkok, Thailand

The New India Assurance Co.Ltd; Mumbai, India
Tunis Re, Tunisia
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Sanima General Insurance Ltd.

PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co. PKF

INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SANIMA GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sanima General Insurance Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the
staternent of financial position as at 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019). the statement of profit or loss, statement of other
comprehénsive income, slalement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then endad and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all matenial respects, the financial position of the
Company as al 31 Ashad 2076 (16 July 2019), and its hnancial performance and its cash fiows for the year thien ended in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFR.Ss),

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Mepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Qur responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiliies for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independant of the Company in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Coda of Ethies for Professional
Accountants together with the ethical requiremnants that are relevant o our audit of financial statements in Mepal, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Handbook of Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
o provide a basis for our opindon.

Rosponsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statemenis

Managemant is responsible for the preparation and fair preseniation of the financial siatements in accordance with
NFR35s, and for such internal control as management determings is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
staterments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frawd or edror.

In preparing the financial statements, managemeant is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 1o continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless management aither intends 1o liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemande are responsible for overseaing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Rasponzibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statermnents

Our objectives aré to oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial stalements as a whaole are free from
material missiatement, whether due to frawd or emror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes thal an audil conducted in accondance with
NSAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstalemenis can arise from fraud or emor and ane
considered matarial if, indhidually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied to Influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an sudit in accordance with N3As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

® |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fimancial statements, whether due to fraud or ermror,
design and perform audil procedures responsive o those risks, and oblain awdit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from eror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misraprasaniations, or the override of internal control

®  Obfain an understanding of internal control relevant lo the audit in order lo design audit procedures that are
appropriale in the circumslances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opéinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

) E\llluﬂ.&_thﬂ appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
retated disclosures made by management,

/;u AT 3
e
| = ia
=1 -
4 1B

124, Lal Colony Marg, Lal Durbar, Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel+ 977 01 4410927, +977 01 4420026, Fax: +977 014413307 pkftrunco.com.np

PREF T. R. Upadied & Co, i & memmbar of he PKF inbsmational Limited netwark of legally independent firms and doos not accopl amy responsibilty or Eability for
the actions or insctions of any other individual membes or frms.
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Sanima General Insurance Ltd.

®  Conclude on the appropriatenass of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, basad on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenis or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report (o the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concerm.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intarnal control that we identify during our

audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

aj
b)

gl

d)

&)

Sanjeay Kumar Mishra

Partner

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which, fo the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the audit.

The Statement of Financial position, Statemnent of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
staternent of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in this repor have been prepared in
all material respect in accordance with Mepal Financial Reporting Standards. In our opinion, proper books of
accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those
books of accounts, However, additional adjustments made in order to prepare financial statements as per Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards are yet to be incorporated in the books of accounts.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations, given 1o us and from our examination of the
boocks of accounts of the Company, we have not come across any cases where the Board of Direclors or
represesntative or any employee of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or misappropirated
the assets or caused loss or damage to the Company.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our examination of the
books of accounts we have not come across any cases where accounting fraud has been committed in the
Company.

The Company has maintained reserve for unexpired risk as per Insurance Act 2049 and Insurance Rules, 2049,
The Insurance Fund, Compulsory Reserve Fund and other funds of similar nalure have been maintained as
prescribed by Beama Samiti.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our examination of the
books of accounts, we have nol come across any cases where the company is involved in any business other
than those licensed by Beema samiti or has issued any policies other than those approved by Beema samiti.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from ocur examination of the
books of accounts, we have not come across any cases whera the company has acted against the interest of
insured.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, the Company has in genaral
complied with the Directives issued by Beema Samiti.

Financial and other relevant information has bean pravided to the shareholders of the Company.

The Company is capable to bear all its accepted long term liabilities in proportion to the assets held by it.

As far as effectivenass of internal control system tested for audil purpose as per Nepal Standards on Auditing,
internal contral system of the Company seems to be cperating effectively.

PKF T R Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

124 Lal Coleny Marg, Lal Durbar, Kathmandu, Mepal

Date: 2076.08.09
UDIN: 191211CAQ01606F rjt
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Sanima General Insurance Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 Ashadh 2076

Assets

Property Plant and Equipment
Intangible assets

Deferred Tax Assets
Financial assets

Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Other Financial Assets
Reinsurance Asset

Insurance receivables

Other Assets

Current tax assets

Cash and cash equivalent
Total Assets

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Catastrophic reserves
Insurance Fund

Retained Earnings

Other Reserves

Total Equity

Insurance contract liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities
Insurance Payables

Other Liabilities

Current tax Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Total Liabilities

Total Liabilities and Equity

FY 2075-76 | FY 2074-75

Note Rs. Rs.
1 38,125,094 8,554,176
2 1,280,000 -
3 13,294,550 -
4 700,856,922 | 656,954,062
5 200,000 -
6 - -
7 12,364,561 12,000
8 91,476,367 140,884
9 24,084,376 -
10 11,722,373 8,672,343
11 - 1,067,802
12 88,093,145 51,410,461
981,497,388 | 726,811,728

13 700,000,000 700,000,000
14 - -
15.1 2,956,033 1,138,939
15.2 29,633,408 | 11,544,066
15.3 | (19,740,287) 8,303,744
154 13,294,550 -
726,143,704 | 720,986,749

16 170,903,247 251,428
3 - 141,170
17 6,589,430 1,878,275
18 47,357,099 111,865
19 23,563,926 3,307,846
11 1,534,196 -
20 5,405,786 134,395
255,353,684 5,824,979
981,497,388 | 726,811,728

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Subodh Lal Shrestha
Deputy General Manager

Khem Raj Lamichhane

Chairman Director

Ganesh Kadal
Chief Finance Officer

Dilip Shrestha
Director

Sonam Gyatso
Director

Date: 2076.08.09
Place: Kathmandu

Dr. Hemanta Kumar Dabadi

As per our report of even date

Sanjeev Kumar Mishra
Partner
TR Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Damodar Prasad Acharya
Director

Annual Report 2075-076 : 13
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Sanima General Insurance Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Profit or Loss
Year ended 31 Ashad 2076

Gross earned premium

Premiums ceded to reinsurers

Net earned premiums

Fees and commission income
Investment income

Net realised gains and losses

Fair value gains and losses

Other income

Other revenue

Total Revenue

Gross benefits and claims paid

Claims ceded to reinsurers

Change in insurance contract liabilities
Net benefits and claims

Finance costs

Other operating and administrative expenses
Other expenses

Total benefits, claims and other expenses
Profit before tax

Income Tax Expense

Profit For the Year

Basic earnings per share

Restated earnings per share

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Note

Rs. Rs.
21 196,235,967 255,442
21 (121,476,504) (143,021)
74,759,463 112,421
22 18,066,651 560
23 71,045,435 40,865,734
24 - -
25 - -
26 324,163 260,940
89,436,249 41,127,234
164,195,712 41,239,655
27 (7,346,382) -
27 3,756,649 -
28 (79,316,336) (110,544)
(82,906,069) (110,544)
29 - -
30 (73,917,582) (8,528,312)
(73,917,582) (8,528,312)
(156,823,651) (8,638,856)
7,372,061 32,600,799
31 (2,215,106) (9,755,136)
5,156,955 22,845,663
32 0.74 5.59
32 0.74 5.59

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Subodh Lal Shrestha
Deputy General Manager

Ganesh Kadal
Chief Finance Officer

Dilip Shrestha
Director

Date: 2076.08.09
Place: Kathmandu

Khem Raj Lamichhane
Chairman

Sonam Gyatso
Director

Dr. Hemanta Kumar Dabadi

Director

As per our report of even date

Sanjeev Kumar Mishra

Partner
TR Upadhya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Damodar Prasad Acharya

Director

14 : Annual Report 2075-076
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Sanima General Insurance Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of other Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 Ashad 2076

Profit for the year
Gains /(losses) on re-measuring financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Gain/(loss) on Actuarial valuation of defined benefit liability
Total other comprehensive income
Deferred tax income /(expense) relating to components of other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

FY 2075-76 | FY 2075-74
Rs Rs
5,156,955 | 22,845,663
5,156,955 | 22,845,663

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Dr. Hemanta Kumar Dabadi
Director

Subodh Lal Shrestha
Deputy General Manager

Khem Raj Lamichhane
Chairman

Ganesh Kadal
Chief Finance Officer

Dilip Shrestha
Director

Sonam Gyatso
Director

Damodar Prasad Acharya
Director

Date: 2076.08.09
Place: Kathmandu

As per our report of even date

Sanjeev

Kumar Mishra
Partner

TR Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Annual Report 2075-076 :
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Sanima General Insurance Lt¢d.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31st Ashad 2076

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash Received

Net premium income

Fee and Commission Income

Net realised gains and losses

Fair value gains and losses

Other Income

Cash Paid

Net Claim Paid

Staff Expense

Agent commission expense

Reinsurance commission expense

Service Charge

Other Expenses

Income Tax

Adjustment

Deferred Reinsurance commission income

Deferred Reinsurance commission Expense

Deferred Agent Commission

Depreciation

Unexpired risk reserve provision

Income Receivable on investments

Change in insurance contract outstanding claims provision

(Increase)/ Decrease of Current Assets

(Increase)/ Decrease in Financial Assets

(Increase)/ Decrease in Reinsurance Asset

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Assets

Increase/ (Decrease) of Current Liabilities

Increase/ (Decrease) in other Liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Assets

(Increase) / Decrease in Intangiable Assets

(Increase ) / Decrease in Investment in Govt. & Govt. Guaranteed Securities

(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Fixed Deposit of
Banks & Financial Institutions

(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Other Deposit of
Banks & Financial Institutions

(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Equity Share

(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Preference Share / Debenture

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Investment

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs. Rs.
115,939,360 411,557
74,759,463 112,421
40,855,734 38,196
324,163 260,940
(169,471,104) (18,393,992)
(3,589,733) -
(38,584,347) (5,088,400)
(4,332,890) -
(7,689,022) -
(113,060,006) (3,550,456)
(2,215,106) (9,755,136)
(90,395,463) (179,641)
(22,789,083) (37,636)
7,497,648 -
2,934,699 -
(5,197,945) (31,461)
(54,407,808) (110,544)

(18,432,973)
(124,616,225)
(30,230,712)
(91,335,483)
(3,050,030)
303,936,513
303,936,513
35,393,081

(24,372,973)
(1,280,000)

(41,290,992)

(200,000)
(2,611,868)

(10,001,361)
(1,079,802)
(140,884)
(8,780,676)
5,935,523
5,935,523
(22,227,915)

(8,522,715)

(656,954,062)

Continue...
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FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs. Rs.

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Advances
Interest Income Received on Investment 71,045,435 40,865,734
Dividend Received - -
Rent Income - -
Interest Income Received on Loan
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) 1,289,602 (624,611,043)
Cash flow on financing activites - 698,141,085
Interest Expence - -
Dividend Paid - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Equity - 698,141,085
Net cash flow from financing activities (C ) - 698,141,085
Change in Exchange rate in Cash and Bank Balances (D) - -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( E) 36,682,684 51,302,127
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 51,410,461 108,334
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 88,093,145 51,410,461

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Subodh Lal Shrestha Khem Raj Lamichhane Dr. Hemanta Kumar Dabadi Sanjeev Kumar Mishra
Deputy General Manager Chairman Director Partner

TR Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ganesh Kadal Dilip Shrestha Sonam Gyatso Damodar Prasad Acharya
Chief Finance Officer Director Director Director

Date: 2076.08.09
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima General Insurance Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Significant Accounting Policy
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2076

Insurance

1.1 General

Sanima General Insurance Limited (hereinafter referred to as “SGIL”) is a public limited company, established
on 2064.03.07 from company registrar office, Kathmandu. The company obtained the license (18/074/075)
from Beema Samiti on 2074.10.24 and finally got approval from Beema Samiti to carry on business from
2075.03.14 and company finally started its commercial operation from 2075.03.27.

1.2 Financial Statements

The Financial Statement of the SGIL for the year ended 31 Ashad 2076 comprises Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes
in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Notes to the Financial Statements, Significant Accounting Policies of
the Company and reconciliations Statement of Financial Position, Equity and Profit or Loss.

1.3 Principal Activities and Operations

Insurance
The principal activities of the Insurance is to issue Non - Life Insurance contract to the general public and
entities.

Ownership of Subsidiary and Associates as at 31 Ashad 2076 is given below:

There are no subsidiary and associates.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement and other Significant Accounting Policies
2.1. Basis of Preparation

2.1.1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statement of SGIL which comprises components mentioned above have been prepared
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards comprising of Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards and Nepal Accounting Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act,
2063.

For all periods up to 31 Ashad 2076 the SGIL prepared the financial statements in accordance with
the Nepal Accounting Standards which were effective till that period. These financial statements for
the year ended 31 Ashad 2076 are the set of statements SGIL has prepared in accordance with NFRSs.

2.1.2. Responsibility for Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements of
SGIL as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063.

2.1.3. Approval of Financial Statements by Directors
The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized by the Board of Directors vide its
resolution and recommended for its approval by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.

20
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2.1.4. Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements of Insurance have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
following material items in the Statement of Financial Position:

e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (quoted) are measured at fair
value.

e Employee defined benefit obligations are measured in accordance with provision contained in NAS
19 based on report of the Actuary.

e Insurance contract liabilities are determined in accordance with provision contained in NFRS 4 &
actuarial report for Liability Adequacy Test (LAT), however, insurance contract liabilities are also
determined in accordance contained in Insurance Act 1992 and Final Liability is taken as higher
of two in compliance with Insurance Board Circular dated 28th September 2018.

2.1.5. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of SGIL are presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs), which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Insurance operates. Financial information presented
in Nepalese Rupees. There was no change in SGIL’'s presentation and functional currency during the
year under review.

2.1.6. Presentation of Financial Statements
The assets and liabilities of SGIL presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped in an
order of liquidity.

2.1.7. Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each
material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar
nature or functions too are presented separately unless they are immaterial. Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses
are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard.

2.1.8. Comparative Information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by Insurance Company with those of the
previous financial year in accordance with NAS 01 Presentation of Financial Statements, except those
which had to be changed as a result of application of the new NFRS. Further, comparative information
is reclassified wherever necessary to comply with the current NFRS presentation.

2.1.9. Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of Insurance’s ability to continue as a going concern and
satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Insurance’s ability
to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.
Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

2.1.10. Standards neither issued nor made effective
Standards neither issued nor made effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are
set our as below.

These standards will be applied by the insurance company when issued and made effective making
a reasonable difference in Financials. Pending a detailed review, the financial impact is not reasonably
estimable as at the date of publication of these financial statements.

i. IFRS 17- Insurance Contract
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IFRS 17, if issued would be an updated version of NFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. IFRS 17 requires entities
to reflect the time value of money in estimated payments to settle the incurred claims, which is not
provisioned by NFRS 4. IFRS 17 requires a company to recognize profits as it delivers insurance services
(rather than when it receives premiums) and to provide information about insurance contract profits the
company expects to recognize in the future.

2.2. Property, Plant and Equipment

A. Recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognized as an asset if, and only if:
(a) Itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b) The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

a) Initial Cost

Iltems of property, plant and equipment may be acquired for safety or environmental reasons. The
acquisition of such property, plant and equipment, although not directly increasing the future economic
benefits of any particular existing item of property, plant and equipment, may be necessary for an
entity to obtain the future economic benefits from its other assets. Such items of property, plant and
equipment qualify for recognition as assets because they enable an entity to derive future economic
benefits from related assets in excess of what could be derived had those items not been acquired.

b) Subsequent Cost

An entity does not recognize in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the
costs of the day-today servicing of the item. Rather, these costs are recognized in profit or loss as
incurred. Costs of day-to-day servicing are primarily the costs of labor and consumables, and may
include the cost of small parts. The purpose of these expenditures is often described as for the ‘repairs
and maintenance’ of the item of property, plant and equipment.

Parts of some items of property, plant and equipment may require replacement at regular intervals.
An entity recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The carrying
amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition provisions
of this Standard

B. Measurement of property, plant and equipment
An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset shall be measured
at its cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

(a) Its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates.

(b) Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

(c) The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired or
as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to
produce inventories during that period.

C. Measurementafterrecognition
An entity shall choose either the cost model or the revaluation model as its accounting policy and shall
apply that policy to an entire class of property, plant and equipment.
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Cost model
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulated impairment
losses.

Revaluation model
The Insurance Company has not applied the revaluation model to the any class of freehold land and
buildings or other assets. Such properties are carried at a previously recognized GAAP Amount.

Depreciation
The company applies Straight line methods of depreciation calculation.

Depreciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use which is
generally on commissioning and not when it starts to be used. Items of Property, Plant and Equipment
are depreciated in a manner that amortizes the cost (or other amount substituted for cost) of the assets
after commissioning, less its residual value, over their useful lives on a Written down value basis. Land
is not depreciated.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately.

A significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment may have a useful life and a depreciation
method that are the same as the useful life and the depreciation method of another significant part
of that same item. Such parts may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge.

The depreciation charge for each period shall be recognized in profit or loss unless it is included in
the carrying amount of another asset.

Estimated rate of Depreciation
The estimated rate of Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of the Company are as follows:

Asset Class Useful life of assets
Building 50 Years

Furniture & Fixture 3-5 Years

Computer & Accessories 3-5 Years

Office equipment 3-5 Years

Motor Vehicle 5-8 Years

Other Assets 5 Years

Lease Hold 5-10 Years

Property, plant and equipment’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each Statement of
Financial Position date and changes, if any, are treated as changes in accounting estimate.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

To determine whether an item of property, plant and equipment is impaired, an entity applies NAS 36
Impairment of Assets. That Standard explains how an entity reviews the carrying amount of its assets,
how it determines the recoverable amount of an asset, and when it recognizes, or reverses the
recognition of, an impairment loss.

Compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost
or given up shall be included in profit or loss when the compensation becomes receivable.

There is no any condition to the company to impair its property plant and equipment as on 31st Ashad
2076.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.

If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’'s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed, only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of income.

E. Derecognition of property, plant and equipment
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be derecognized:
(a) On disposal; or
(b) When no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be included
in profit or loss when the item is derecognized (unless NAS 17 requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).
Gains shall not be classified as revenue.

2.3. Intangible assets

Basis of recognition
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable
to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

The company has software as intangible assets as on 31st Ashad 2076.
The useful life of software estimated by management is five years.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset is carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortization of Intangible assets
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of services to be rendered.
Amortization is recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life. Amortization period and
the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and they are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
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Amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows;

De-recognition of Intangible assets

An intangible asset is de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from it. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of such intangible assets is included in the statement
of profit or loss when the item is de-recognized.

Impairment of Intangible assets

An impairment review is performed whenever there is an indication of impairment. When the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

Assessment of impairment of intangible assets
The Board of Directors has assessed the potential impairment indicators of Intangible assets as at 31°
Ashad 2076. Based on the assessment, no impairment indicators were identified.

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and
machinery and system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress would be
transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Capital work-in-
progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

There is no any capital work in progress as on 31%'Ashad 2076.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except;

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.
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Carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit or loss is recognized outside
statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2.5. Financial Assets
As per NFRS 9 Financial instrument are classified into following types;
a) Financial instrument measured at amortized cost
b) Financial instrument at fair value through profit and loss
c) Financial instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income

A. Financial instrument measured at amortized cost
Financial assets at amortized cost includes those financial assets that are held by the entity for long
term purpose and intend to hold till maturity.

The asset is measured at the amount recognized at initial recognition minus principal repayments,
plus or minus the cumulative amortization of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and any loss allowance. Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and
is recognized in "Investment income" in statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has been
incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the loss is recorded in the statement of income.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment. The impairment assessment is performed at each reporting date.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and that decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the
statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized
cost at the reversal date.
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B. Financial instrument at fair value through profit and loss

Recognition of financial instrument at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Investments typically bought
with the intention to sell in the near future are classified as held for trading. Attributable transaction
costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred. These investments are initially
recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are remeasured at fair value.

Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘fair value gains and losses’ in the statement of profit or loss.
Interest is accrued and presented in ‘investment income’ using the Effective Interest rate (EIR). Dividend
income is recorded in the ‘investment income' when the right to the payment has been established.
The Company will evaluate its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (held for trading) by
considering whether the intent to sell them in the near term is still appropriate.

For investments to be designated as at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, the following criteria must
be met;

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on a different basis.

C. Financial instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income

Recognition of Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) financial investments include equity shares.
Equity investments classified as fair value through OCI are those that are neither classified as held
for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss.

After the initial measurement, FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized gains
or losses recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the available-for-sale reserve.
Dividends earned whilst FVTOCI are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as ‘Investment
income’ when the right of the payment has been established. When the asset is de-recognized,
cumulative gain or loss is in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is transferred
to the statement of profit or loss. If the asset is determined to be impaired, the cumulative loss is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss and removed from the available-for-sale reserve.

Impairment of financial assets at fair value through OCI

If a fair value through OCI financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between
its costs (net of any principal repayment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income, is transferred from equity to the statement
of profit or loss. Reversals in respect of equity instruments classified as fair value through OCI are not
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments classified at fair value through OCI are reversed
through the statement of profit or loss, if the increase in the fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment losses were recognized in the statement
of income.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial
position can be derived from active markets, they are derived from observable market data. However,
if this is not available, judgment is required to establish fair values.
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The financial assets and financial liabilities of the company are recognized at fair value. Fair value of
the financial assets are determined on the basis of fair value hierarchy.

Determination of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of
financial position for which there is no observable market price are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical techniques. The inputs to these models are
derived from observable market data where possible, but if this is not available, judgment is required
to establish their fair values.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

e Level 1: Listed/quoted (adjusted) prices in active markets for identical instruments are available.
The Company measures the fair value of a financial instrument using active listed/quoted prices or
dealer price quotations and managers buying price. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in
an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

e Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes instruments valued using;
quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

e Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data. Non-market observable input means that fair values
are determined, in whole or in part, using a valuation technique (model) based on assumptions that
are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument,
nor are they based on available market data.

Derecognition of financial assets

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognized financial asset (or financial liability) from an
entity’s statement of financial position. In general, NFRS 9 criteria for derecognition of a financial asset
aim to answer the question whether an asset has been sold and should be derecognized or whether
an entity obtained a kind of financing against this asset and simply a financial liability should be
recognized.

Derecognition criteria in NFRS 9 should be applied to a part of an asset if, and only if, the part being
considered for derecognition meets one of the following three conditions:

1. The part comprises only specifically identified cash flows from a financial asset or a group of similar
financial assets.

2. The part comprises only a fully proportionate (pro rata) share of the cash flows from a financial
asset or a group of similar financial assets.

3. The part comprises only a fully proportionate (pro rata) share of specifically identified cash flows
from a financial.

2.6. Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance assets are those assets that are created as a part of reinsurance ceded out of the gross
amount.
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Reinsurance Assets is created on the premium ceded to the reinsurer. Reinsurance part is provided
by LAT report. Further part of claim ceded to reinsurer is also reclassed as reinsurance Assets which
is as per NFRS 4.Reinsurance assets are not set off with the gross insurance contract liabilities as it
is not provided by NFRS

Reinsurance Assets is created on following items:
a) Premium ceded to reinsurer
b) Outstanding claim ceded to reinsurer

Reinsurance assets are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when
the contract is transferred to another party.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an
indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is objective
evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the
Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event
has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer.
The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities

Current tax assets of the company includes the amount of advance income tax paid to the Inland
Revenue department and tax deducted at source (TDS). Similar current tax liabilities includes the tax
provision made for the year.

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland
Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are shown in net in statement of financial position of the
company as there exist condition to setoff both of the assets and liabilities as permitted by NFRS 4.

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of any provision.

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Provision for unexpired risk reserve provision

As per regulatory requirement the insurance company needs to create 50% of net earned premium
as liabilities for provision for unexpired risk reserve. However NFRS 4 requires valuation of liabilities
of the company as per actuaries and create liabilities higher among the regulatory liabilities or the
liabilities as per NFRS 4.

As per the requirement of NFRS 4 UPR is calculated by actuaries by applying following assumption:

a) For all one-year policies, except for Marine Cargo Open Cover Policies, the UPR is determined
on 1/365th basis, assuming the risk is uniform over the policy year.

b) For shorter than one year Marine Cargo policies, UPR is determined: i) Using straight-line method
over the policy term as in (a) above; or ii) In the absence of data required for (i) above, using the
last three months’ premium for the relevant period as per Article 69 (2) of Implementing Regulations,
but company is not able to provide date of Voyage/ date of Expiry of Risk, we have assumed as
50% of Gross Premium.
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Unearned premium reserve is calculated by actuaries on gross premium income and as per actuarial
valuation unearned premium reserve is equal to the unexpired risk reserve.

Provision for unexpired risk represents premiums received for risks that have not yet expired. Generally,
the reserve is released over the term of the contract and is recognized as premium income.

As required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, the Company performs a Liability Adequacy Test (LAT)
in respect of non-life contract liabilities with the assistance of an external actuary.

Provision for outstanding claims

As per regulatory requirement the insurance company needs to create 115% of opening outstanding
claim as liabilities for provision for outstanding claims. Gross provision for outstanding claim is separated
from the hundred and fifteen percentage. Actuarial valuation is required for the calculation of liabilities
for gross outstanding claim provision.

Non-life insurance contract liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums
are charged. These liabilities are known as the outstanding claims provision, which are based on the
estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether reported
or not, together with related claims handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage
and other recoveries.

The liability is not discounted for the time value of money. The liabilities are de-recognized when the
contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

Liability adequacy test
NFRS 4 requires the insurance company to determine their business liabilities using the actuaries.

A Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) was performed by Trans Value consultants, a firm of professional
actuaries as at 31 Ashad 2076as required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts in order to assess the
adequacy of the carrying amount of the provision for unexpired risk. The valuation is based on
internationally accepted actuarial methods. According to the report issued by Trans Value consultants,
the liability carried forward by the Company was not adequate.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed
to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs
over unearned premiums. This calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after
taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant non-life
insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned
premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up
a provision for liability adequacy.

Following are the assumption used by actuaries for the calculation of liabilities of the Company as
required by NFRS 4;

1. Accounting Policy:
NFRS 4 Accounting Policy document is a policy framework which specifies the fundamental
approach of the Company to implementation of the NFRS 4 in the background of regulatory
specifications (of Beema Samiti) for estimation of various liability provisions.

2. Cash Flow:
Cash Flows considered and estimation are as follows:

Income side;

- Premium

- Reinsurance claims

- Reinsurance commission
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Outflow side;

- Claims

- Reinsurance premium

- Commission for intermediation
- Expenses

The current liability estimates are not based on present value of future cash flows, the portfolio
size being very small. Alternative methods have been applied.

Valuation Methods and Assumptions

Based on the Ultimate Loss Ratio Method Ultimate losses for each line of businesses are estimated.
Paid claims and outstanding claims as on 16 July 2019 are then subtracted from the ultimate
losses to arrive at the IBN(E)R as on 16 July 2019. These IBN(E)Rs are then compared with the
15% of the outstanding claims (set aside akin to the IBN(E)R as per the regulations) to test for
adequacy.

Discounting Policy:

No discounting has been used. The estimates of liability amounts for non-life insurance contracts
are always carried out on non-discount basis for 1) liability terms being short and 11) the Pricing
(determination of premium) is on non-discount basis.

Aggregation practices
Aggregation of paid claims data was considered based on accident year cohort. The accident year
grouping is annual ending on 16th July.

2.10. Provisions

2.11.

212

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement
is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. Expense
relating to any provision is presented in the statement of income net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounting using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Revenue Recognition Policy of company

The company applies accrual basis of accounting for the recognition of revenue which includes the
premium income, fees and commission income and other income of insurance company as per the
requirement of the NAS 18.

Gross premiums on insurance contracts
NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, requires contracts written by insurer to be classified as either
‘Insurance contracts’ or ‘Investment contracts’ depending in the level of insurance risk transferred.

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders,
if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.

As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by
comparing benefits paid with benefits payable, if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts
can also transfer financial risk.
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Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk and no significant
insurance risk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in one or more of a specified
interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of price or
rates, credit rating or credit index or other variables, provided in the case of a non-financial variable
that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for
the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless
all rights and obligations are extinguished or expire. Investment contracts can, however, be reclassified
as insurance contracts after inception if insurance risk becomes significant.

All the products sold by the Company are insurance contracts. Therefore, classified as insurance
contracts under the NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts. Thus, the Company does not have any investment
contracts within its product portfolio as at the reporting date.

Revenue recognition of gross written premium
Gross premium (GP) represents the premium charged by the Company to underwrite risks. GP is
accounted on an accrual basis.

Non-life insurance gross premium comprises the total premiums received/receivable for the whole
period of cover provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period and are recognized
on the date on which the policy commences.

2.13. Premiums ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts

Recognition of premium ceded to reinsurers

Non-life gross reinsurance premium comprises the total premium payable for the whole cover
provided by contracts entered into the period and is recognized on the date on which the policy
incepts. Premium includes any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance
contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

2.14. Fee and Commission Income
As per Nepal financial reporting standards the insurance company shall recognize its income in
accrual basis so the fee and commission of the company total received is not totally recognized as
income in the year of collection of cash. However NFRS required to defer the fee and commission
income not related to the current year. Hence the fee and commission income is deferred by ratio
using the gross unearned premium reserve to gross premium written for each portfolio.

2.15. Interest income

Revenue recognition of interest income

Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by
using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liabilities (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or
liabilities. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates future cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses. The
calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs and fees and points paid or
received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or liability.
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Dividend Recognition policy
As per NAS dividend income or expense shall be recognized when right to receive dividend is
established or dividend is declared by the company.

Staff expenses

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under
short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Retirement Benefits Obligations

A. Defined Contribution Plans

A Defined Contribution Plan includes post-employment benefit plan under which an Insurance pays
fixed contribution into a separate Institution (or own fund) and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee
benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting
Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

Employer & Employee both, contributes 10% of the basic salary in provident fund.

A rate of 8.33% is contributed in Gratuity for the year ended 315t Ashad 2076.

B. Defined Benefit Plans
Provision for Defined Benefit Plan are provided as per NAS 19 based on Actuarial Valuation Report.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
Accordingly, leave encashment has been considered as defined benefit plans as per Nepal Accounting
Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

a. Leave Encashment
NAS 19 requires actuarial valuations for Leave encashment. Actuarial valuations has been
carried outand liability toward leave encashment is taken as calculated by actuary.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset (or assets) and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or assets), even if that asset is (or those assets are)
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Insurance company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Leases that do
not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the Insurance
Company are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

Insurance company as a lessor

Leases in which the Insurance Company does not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income is recognized as revenue
in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same bases as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

2.20. Capital commitments and contingencies
All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. Contingent
liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events
or present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably
measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the statement of financial position but are
disclosed unless they are remote.

The company does not have any Capital commitments and Contingencies as on Reporting date.

2.21. Deferred Acquisition Cost
As per NFSR 4 deferred acquisition cost describes the practice of the cost of acquiring a new
customer over the duration of the insurance contract. face large upfront costs incurred in issuing
new business.

The insurance company has incurred agent commission and reinsurance commission expense as
deferred acquisition cost which are deferred for the next period.

2.22. Segment Reporting
The company has determine following business as separate segment;
1. Motor

Agricultural

Engineering

Fire

Marine

Miscellaneous

Micro

NOoOORWN

Segment Reporting includes the total profit distribution of the company to all its line of business.
The premium income, reinsurance premium expense, gross claim and claim ceded to reinsurer,
outstanding claim, other direct expenses and income, fee and commission income, investment
income, other operating and administrative expenses are allocated to each line of business as per
revenue account as prepared in existing GAAP policy however any amount increase or decrease
in such item are separately kept as an unallocated amount.

2.23. Events occurring after the reporting date
Events after the reporting period are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between
the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue.

All material post reporting date events have been considered and where appropriate, adjustments
or disclosures have been made in the respective notes to the financial statements.

2.24. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Nepal Accounting Standards requires
the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.
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Sanima General Insurance Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

2. Intangible Assets

Amounts
Rs

Cost:
At 31 Ashad 2074 -
Additions -
Disposals -
At 32 Ashad 2075 -
Additions 1,600,000
Disposals -
At 31 Ashad 2076 1,600,000

Accumulated Amortization
At 31 Ashad 2074 -
Additions -
Disposals -
At 32 Ashad 2075 -
Additions 320,000
Disposals -
At 31 Ashad 2076 320,000
Net book value:
At 32 Ashad 2075 -
At 31 Ashad 2076 1,280,000

3 Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities

Valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Deferred tax assets 13,294,550 -
Deferred tax liabilities - 141,170
13,294,550 141,170
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

3.1 Deferred tax Assets/(Liability)

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Temporary Temporary
Difference Tax Effect Difference Tax Effect
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Leave Encashment 1,689,016 506,705 - -
Gratuity 1,315,809 394,743 78,952 23,686
Property, plant and equipment (3,248,408) (974,522) (594,524) (178,357)
Incurred but not reported as per LAT report 15,159,240 4,547,772 - -
Unexpired Risk Reserve 98,526,173 29,557,852 185,887 55,766.00
Reinsurance Assets Recognized as per NFRS 4 (81,521,037) (24,456,311) (140,883) (42,265.00)
Deferred Agent Commission expense (2,934,700) (880,410) - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission expense (7,497,647) (2,249,294) - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission income 22,826,720 6,848,016 - -
44,315,166 13,294,551 (470,569) (141,170)
4 Financial assets at amortized cost
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Government Securities - -
Commercial Banks Fixed Deposits 601,837,264 656,954,062
Development Banks Fixed Deposits 78,706,131 -
Finance Companies Fixed Deposits 17,701,659 -
Foreign Bonds - -
Debenture/Bond of Financial Institutions 2,611,868 -
700,856,922 656,954,062
The amount of fixed deposit lien in the name of Insurance Board amounts to Rs. 47.96 crore.
4.1 Investment in Debenture as on 31st Ashad 2076
Name of Debenture Rate of Interest| Maturity period| Time of Payment of interest| Amount
10.5% SBL Debenture 2082 10.50% 2082 Half Yearly | 25,00,000
5 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Quoted Equities - -
Unquoted Equities 200,000 -
Mutual Funds - -
Citizen Investment Trust Units = -
Less: Impairment - -
200,000 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

As at 31 Ashad 2076

5.1 Quoted Equity Shares

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
5.2 Unquoted Equity Shares
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Insurance Training institute of Nepal 200,000 200,000 - -
200,000 200,000 - -
5.3 Quoted Mutual Fund Shares
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
6 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Quoted Equities - -
6.1 Quoted Equities
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

7

8.1

Other Financial Assets

Other financial assets includes financial assets other than the above normal classification of financial assets measured
at amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive income. This is stated
at net of any impairment recognized.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Security Deposit 54,289 12,000
Staff Advances 10,000 -
Government Grant Receivable 8,100,272 -
Claim Advance 1,000,000 -
Other Advance 3,200,000 -
Less: Impairment Provisions - -
12,364,561 12,000

Reinsurance Asset

Reinsurance Asset is recognised from the portion of reinsurance amount paid to Reinusurer. Premium being paid in
cash basis and not accrued is parked in Reinsurance Asset.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Reinsurance Asset 91,476,367 140,884
91,476,367 140,884

Reinsurance Assets calculation

Total Reinsurance Assets is the sum of the Reinsurance Assets Created on reinsurance ceded on outstanding claim
and Reinsurance Assets Created on reinsurance ceded on deferred premium.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Reinsurance Assets Created on reinsurance ceded on outstanding claim 9,955,330
Reinsurance Assets Created on reinsurance ceded on deferred premium 81,521,037
Total Reinsurance Assets 91,476,367 -

Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables includes amount receivable related to insurance businesses such as due from other insurance
companies, due from reinsurers and any due premium receivable.

Reinsurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Outstanding from Other Insurance Companies 24,084,376 -
Sundry Debtors - -
Outstanding from Reinsurers - -
Less: Impairment provisions - -
24,084,376 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076
9.1 Assessment of impairment of insurance receivables

The management has assessed potential impairment loss of insurance receivables as at 32 Ashad 2075 and 31 Asadh
2076. Based on the assessment, it was concluded that there is no requirement for an additional impairment loss
provision other than amounts provided.

9.2 Fair value of insurance receivables

The carrying amount disclosed above approximates the fair value at the reporting date.

10 Other Assets

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Stock of tickets 12,310 1,420
Deferred Reinsurance Commssion Expense 7,497,648 -
Deferred Agent Commssion Expense 2,934,699 -
Prepayments 586,288 7,841,839
Prepaid expenses 691,428 -
Seed Money to Insurance Promotion Board - 200,000
VAT Receivable - 629,084
11,722,373 8,672,343

11 Current Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)

Current income tax liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Income Tax Liabilities 15,650,826 9,613,966
TDS Receivables - -
Advance Tax Payment 14,116,630 10,681,768
(1,534,196) 1,067,802

12 Cash and cash Equivalent

Cash and cash Equivalent in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and on hand, call deposits and
fixed deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
net of any provisions.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Cash Balance - 1,596
Bank Balance 30,413,035 8,867,718
Commercial Banks Fixed Deposits 10,013,274 -
Development Banks Fixed Deposits - -
Finance Companies Fixed Deposits - -
Commercial Banks Call Deposits 40,347,428 42,541,147
Development Banks Call Deposits 3,279,746 -
Finance Companies Call Deposits 4,039,662 -
Less: Impairment Provisions = -
88,093,145 51,410,461
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

13 Share Capital

The Company has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity. Incremental external costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of these shares are recognised in equity, net of tax.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Shares as at 1st Shrawan 700,000,000 1,000,000
Add: Bonus Shared Issued = -
Add: Right Shared Issued - 600,000,000
Add: Addition this year - 99,000,000
Add: Calls in Advance 3 -
Shares as at 31st Ashad 700,000,000 700,000,000

13.1 Reconciliation of No. of Shares

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Ordinary Shares as at 1st Shrawan 7,000,000 10,000
Add: Bonus Shared Issued - -
Add: Right Shared Issued - 6,000,000
Add: Addition this year - 990,000
Add: Calls in Advance - -
Ordinary Shares as at 31st Ashad 7,000,000 7,000,000

13.2 Rights of ordinary shareholders

All issued shares are fully paid and shares of the Company are not yet listed on the Nepal stock exchange. The
holders of ordinary shares are promotor only.

13.3 Company’s Shareholding Structure

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
No of % No of %
Shareholder Equity Share of Share | Equity Share of Share
A. Promoter Group
Individuals 4,900,000 70 4,900,000 70
Institution 2,100,000 30 2,100,000 30
Promoter Group Total 7,000,000 100 7,000,000 100
B. Public Group
Individuals - - - -
Institution - - - -
Public Group Total - - - -
Grand Total 7,000,000 100 7,000,000 100
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13.4 Shareholder holding 1% or more Share

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
No of % No of %
Particulars Equity Share of Share | Equity Share of Share
Sanima Pvt. Ltd. 1,100,000 11.00 1,100,000 11.00
Sanima Bank Ltd. 1,000,000 10.00 1,000,000 10.00
Jibanath Lamichhane 950,000 9.50 950,000 9.50
Binay Kumar Shrestha 820,000 8.20 820,000 8.20
Moti Lal Dugar 700,000 7.00 700,000 7.00
Khem Raj Lamichhane 465,000 4.65 465,000 4.65
Sampa Lama 400,000 4.00 400,000 4.00
Sonam Gyatso 300,000 3.00 300,000 3.00
Ghanshyam Thapa 300,000 3.00 300,000 3.00
Bibek Dugar 300,000 3.00 300,000 3.00
Tenjing Yongdup Nepali 200,000 2.00 200,000 2.00
Mal Chanda Dugar 150,000 1.50 150,000 1.50
Namkhang Lama 100,000 1.00 100,000 1.00
Bhuwan Kumar Dahal 100,000 1.00 100,000 1.00
14 Share premium
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Share premium - -
15 Reserves & Surplus
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
15.1 Catastrophic reserves
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Catastrophic reserves 2,956,033 1,138,939
Total 2,956,033 1,138,939
15.2 Insurance Fund
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Insurance Fund 29,633,408 11,544,066
Total 29,633,408 11,544,066
15.3 Retained Earnings
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Retained Earnings (19,740,287) 8,303,744
Total (19,740,287) 8,303,744
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15.4 Other Reserves

15.4.1

15.4.2

16
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Insurance Reserve
Regulatory Reserve
Deferred Tax Reserve
Other Free reserve
Fair value reserve
Actuarial reserve
Total

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs
13,294,550 -
13,294,550 -

Fair value reserve

Fair value reserves comprise the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income and is carried forward until the respective assets are derecognised.

Balance as at 1 Shrawan
Other comprehensive income
Balance as at 31 Ashad

FY 2075-76
Rs

FY 2074-75
Rs

Actuarial Reserve

Actuarial reserve include the actuarial gains/(losses) arising from valuation of gratuity and leave encashment liability

as required by NAS 19 - Employee Benefits.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Balance as at 1 Shrawan - -
Other comprehensive income - -
Balance as at 31 Ashad - -

Insurance contract liabilities

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Outstanding claims provision 18,432,973 -
Incurred But not Reported Claims 16.1 16,430,885 -
Unexpired risk reserve provision 16.2 136,039,389 251,428
Excess URR required to be provided for shortfall as per GAAP - -
Total gross Insurance contract liability 170,903,247 251,428
Change in gross insurance contract liability (A) 170,651,819 251,428
Reinsurance asset on outstanding claims provision 9,955,330 -
Reinsurance asset on unexpired risk reserve provision 16.2 81,521,037 140,884
Total reinsurance assets created 91,476,367 140,884
Change in reinsurance assets (B) 91,335,484 140,884
Net Change in Insurance contract liabilities (B-A) (79,316,335) (110,544)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

16.1 Incurred But not Reported (IBNR)

Company has recognized IBNR higher of actuary assessed IBNR reserve and IBNR equivalent to 15% of net

outstanding claim as per regulatory provision on portfolio basis.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs

Incurred but not reported (IBNR) as per LAT
Fire 863,230 -
Engineering 1,075,310 -
Agriculture 636,334 -
Marine 324,014 -
Miscellaneous 997,603 -
Motor 12,534,394 -
Total as per LAT Report 16,430,885 -
Incurred but not reported as per GAAP
Fire 108,367 -
Engineering 3,483 -
Agriculture 16,845 -
Marine 8,553 -
Miscellaneous 31,224 -
Motor 1,103,174 -
Total as per GAAP 1,271,646 -
Higher of above
Fire 863,230 -
Engineering 1,075,310 -
Agriculture 636,334 -
Marine 324,014 -
Miscellaneous 997,603 -
Motor 12,534,394 -
Total 16,430,885 -

16.2 Unexpired risk reserve provision (UPR/URR)

Unexpired risk reserve (URR) is the liabilities related with the gross premium income that is not related with the
current year and is deferred for next period. URR will be the higher among the URR as per regulatory requirement

and URR as per Liability adequacy test (LAT) report on portfolio basis.

Net Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR) as per GAAP [A]
Net Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR) as per LAT [B]
Total Net URR for the Year (Higher of A and B)

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs
37,513,217 65,541
54,518,352 110,544
54,518,352 110,544
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

17  Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities include financial liabilities other than the normal classification of financial liabilities measured
at amortized cost.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Sundry Creditor 858,766 1,403,439
Gratuity/Pension Fund 1,315,809 78,952
Employees Leave Fund 1,689,016 -
Deposit Premium 384,144 19,273
Refund Premium Payable 44 508 -
Bonus Payable 2,289,147 -
PF Payable 8,040 376,611
6,589,430 1,878,275

18 Insurance payables

Insurance payables includes amount payable related to insurance businesses such as due to agents, due to other
insurance companies, due to reinsurers.

Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration
paid or payable.

Insurance payables are derecognised when the contractual obligations are extinguished or expire or when the contract
is transferred to another party.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Outstanding payable to Agents 1,043,999 -
Due to Other insurance Company 19,159,202 109,124
Insurance Levy Payable to Beema Samiti 1,962,175 2,741
Payable to Reinsurers 25,191,723 -
47,357,099 111,865

19  Other Liabilities

Other liabilities includes the amount of provisions made for staff bonus and any other provisions determined in
accordance with the requirements of NAS 37.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Provision for staff bonus 737,207 3,270,210
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income 22,826,719 37,636
23,563,926 3,307,846
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20 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables includes the payable to trade suppliers and any other payables other than the financial
liabilities and other liabilities. These payables are recorded at the amount expected to be payable as at the reporting

date.
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
TDS payable 2,052,048 134,395
VAT Payable 2,872,356 -
Payable to employee 450,042 -
Payable Survey Fee 31,340 -
5,405,786 134,395

21 Net Premiums

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Gross earned premium 196,235,967 255,442
Premiums ceded to reinsurers (121,476,504) (143,021)
Net Earned Premium 74,759,463 112,421

21.1 Gross premiums on insurance contracts

For the year ended

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs

Class-wise
Motor 98,290,476 71,986
Agricultural 11,694,757 -
Avaition - -
Engeneering 10,204,398 -
Fire 42,463,283 53,893
Marine 10,401,959 4,395
Miscellaneous 22,800,258 143,826
Micro 362,178 -
196,217,309 274,100
Transfer to/(from) deposit premium 18,658 (18,658)
Total 196,235,967 255,442
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21.2 Premiums ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts

For the year ended

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Class-wise
Motor 36,873,854 28,725
Agricultural 9,355,806 -
Avaition - -
Engeneering 10,486,580 -
Fire 36,686,410 28,330
Marine 9,122,046 952
Miscellaneous 18,951,808 85,014
Micro - -
121,476,504 143,021

Payee-wise
Nepal reinsurance company 52,095,574 143,021
Foreign reinsurers 69,380,930 -
121,476,504 143,021

22 Fees and Commission Income

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Reinsurance commission income 40,855,734 38,196
Deferred Reinsurance commission income (22,789,083) (37,636)
18,066,651 560

23 Investment income

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs

Interest income 71,045,435 40,865,734
Dividend income - -
Income from revenue stamps

71,045,435 40,865,734

23.1 Interest income

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs
Government securities - -
Commercial Banks Fixed Deposits 61,461,212 36,539,556
Development Banks Fixed Deposits 6,526,474 -
Finance Companies Fixed Deposits 684,363 -
Debenture of Commercial Banks and Finance Companies 137,842 -
Income from Other (Other than Fixed Deposits) 2,235,544 4,326,178

71,045,435 40,865,734
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23.2 Dividend income
Revenue recognition of dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs
Dividend from Ordinary Shares of Public Limited Company - -
Dividend form Mutual Fund = -
Dividend from Preference Shares = -

24 Netrealised gains and losses

Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss on investments include gains and losses
on financial assets. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales
proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

Gain/(Loss) on sale of Mutual Fund
Profit from Sale of Investment
Loss on Sale of Investment

FY 2075-76
Rs

FY 2074-75
Rs

25 Fair value gains and losses

This includes the gains and losses arising from changes in fair value on financial instruments classified as financial

asset at fair value through profit or loss, if any.

Fair value gains and losses

FY 2075-76
Rs

FY 2074-75
Rs

26 Other income

Other income includes disposal gains/ lossess on property, plant and equipment and miscellaneous income. Profit
or loss on sale of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the period in which the sale occurs and is classified

under other income.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Foreign Exchange Income/(Loss) 11,860 -
Others Income 46,853 -
Other Direct Income 265,450 240
Written back liabilities - 260,700
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets - -
324,163 260,940
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27 Net benefits and claims paid

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Gross benefits and claims paid (7,346,382) -
Claims ceded to reinsurers 3,756,649 -
(3,589,733) -
28 Change in Insurance contract liabilities
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Change in Gross insurance contract liabilities
Change in insurance contract outstanding claims provision 18,432,973
Change in charged for Incurred But not Reported 16,430,885 -
Change in unexpired risk reserve provision 135,787,961 110,544
170,651,819 110,544
Change in Reinsurance Assets
Change in reinsurace asset created on outstanding claim provision (9,955,330)
Change in Reinsurace Asset created on unexpired risk reserve (81,380,153)
(91,335,483) -
Net change in Insurance contract liabilities 79,316,336 110,544

29 Finance costs

Finance costs include the finance charges in respect of Bank loan, other Financial liabilities at amortized cost and

in respect of finance leases as per NAS 17 Leases.

FY 2075-76
Rs

FY 2074-75
Rs

Interest Expense

30 Other operating and administrative expenses

Recognition of other operating and administrative expenses

Other operating and administrative expenses are recognised on accrual basis. All expenditure incurred in the running
of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Staff expenses 38,584,347 5,088,400
Administrative expenses 26,267,665 3,406,900
Depreciation 5,197,945 31,461
Amortization 320,000 -
Agent Commission 1,398,191 -
Reinsurance Commission expenses 191,374 -
Insurance Levy-Net 1,064,010 1,311
Other Direct expenses 894,050 240
73,917,582 8,528,312
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30.1 Staff expenses

For the year ended

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Provision for Staff Bonus 737,207 3,270,210
Contributions made to the Employees' Provident Fund (EPF) 1,570,807 94,780
Salary 18,503,718 947,797
Allowance 12,124,611 696,661
Dashain Allowance 1,759,630 -
Staff Welfare Expenses 175,094 -
Provision for Gratuity / Penson 1,308,482 78,952
Provision for Encashment of Leave 1,775,328 -
Wages 158,276 -
Employee insurance premium 327,381 -
Employee other expense 143,813 -
Total employee benefit expenses 38,584,347 5,088,400
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30.2 Administrative expenses

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Rent 8,667,551 1,750,000
Water & Electricity 747,707 70,195
Repair & Maintenance 238,600 4,000
Communication Expenses 1,602,321 78,282
Fuel expenses 1,869,368 84,636
Printing & Stationery 1,963,628 123,970
Miscellaneous Office & Materials Expenses 483,430 50,984
Travelling Expenses 672,340 245,010
Agent Tranning Expense 34,362 25,770
Insurance Premium 244,011 29,821
Security Expense 295,000 17,500
Legal and Consultancy Fee 430,911 64,522
News Papers, Books & Periodical 31,930 4170
Publicity and Advertisement 1,140,223 102,576
Business Promotion Expense 318,795 -
Guest Entertainment Expenses 1,642,825 26,030
Gift & Donation 35,000 -
Expense Related to Board Meeting 253,493 -
Expense Related to Committee/Sub-Committee 78,000 -
Annual General Meeting Expense 135,129 -
Expense Related to Audit 296,145 35,000
Bank Charges 48,376 3,410
Rates and Taxes 986,891 -
Revenue Stamp 180,580 -
Branch opening expenses 228,085 355,699
Website and app development expenses 309,012 -
Postage and courier 144,449 -
Miscellaneous Expense 129,678 174,437
Cleaning Expenses 443,389 12,000
Server Management Fees 1,460,899 131,160
Transportation and Freight Charges 30,920 -
Training and Seminar Expenses 558,299 -
Office Tea & Coffee Expenses 477,255 17,728
Overtime Expenses 89,063 -
Total 26,267,665 3,406,900
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31 Income tax expense

Recognition of income tax expense
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, when it is recognised in

equity.
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Income tax paid - -
Income Tax (15,650,826) (9,613,966)
Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income 13,435,720 (141,170)

(2,215,106) |  (9,755,136)

31.1 Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income)

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

GAAP Deferred tax expenses/(Income) 81,597 (154,671)
NFRS Adjustment Deferred tax effect 13,354,123 13,501
13,435,720 (141,170)

32 Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Company presents basic and restated Earnings Per Share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Earning per share have been calculated on weighted average no of share outstanding.
Restated EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding with the effect of bonus share and right share, if any issued in current
year, in previous year.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs
For the year ended
Profit for the year (Rs.) 5,156,955 22,845,663
Weighted average number of shares 7,000,000 4,087,500
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 0.74 5.59
Weighted average number of shares
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 Shrawan 7,000,000 10,000
Shares issued during the year - 4,077,500
7,000,000 4,087,500

Restated earnings per share
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Bonus share to be issued cost [A] - -
Number of bonus share at current share price [B] - -
Restated share (weighted average no of share o/s +[B]) 7,000,000 4,087,500

Profit for the year 5,156,955 22,845,663
Restated Earning Per Share 0.74 5.59
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33

34

341

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by

the

Company’s shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid.

Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors after the reporting date is not recognised as a liability and is only
disclosed as a note to the financial statements.

Final dividend

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs

Final dividend proposed (Rs.) - -
Number of ordinary shares = -
Final dividend per share (Rs.) = -

Related Party Transactions

The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business with parties who are defined as related
parties in NAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.

Details of the related party transactions are reported below.

Identifiaction of Related Party

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements
a. A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

b.

(i)
(i)
(iif)

has control or joint control of the reporting entity
has significant influence over the reporting entity or

is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.

An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or
an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers
are also related to the reporting entity.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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34.2 Transactions and outstanding balances with the key management personnel

According to the NAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures, key management personnel are those having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity.

Sanima general Insurance company considers its Board of Directors and their immediate family members as key
management personnel of the Company.

KMPs of the Sanima General Insurance Company Ltd. includes members of Board of Directors and Deputy General
Manager namely:

Name of key management personnel Position Remarks

Mr. Khem Raj Lammichhane Chairman From 2075.12.03
Dr. Hemanta Kumar Dabadi Director From 2075.12.03
Mr. Dilip Shrestha Director From 2075.12.03
Mr. Sonam Gyatso Director From 2075.12.03
Mr. Damodar Prasad Acharya Independent Director From 2075.12.25
Mr. Arun Kumar Ojha Director Upto 2075.12.03
Dr. Manik lal Shrestha Alternate Director Upto 2075.12.03
Dr. Jugal Bhurtel Chairman Upto 2075.12.03
Mr. Subodh Lal Shrestha Deputy General Manager (DGM) -

a) Key management personnel compensation

Transactions for the Year ended 31st Ashad 2076 Board of Director DGM
Salary, Allowance and other facilities - | 2,147,964
Board meeting Allowance 230,000 -
Other Committee meeting fee 78,000 -
Total 308,000 | 2,147,964

35 Accounting Clasification and Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

In the principal market for the asset or liability or ;
In the absence of the principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

Fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. When available,
the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. For units in unit trusts, fair value is determined by reference
to published bid-values. If a market for a financial instrument is not active, then the Company establishes fair value
using a valuation technique.

Continue...
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Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available),
reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses
and option pricing models. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as little as
possible on estimates specific to the Company, incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in
setting a price, and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Inputs to
valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-return factors inherent in
the financial instrument. The Company calibrates valuation techniques and tests them for validity using prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on other available observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price, i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received, unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument, i.e. without modification or repackaging,
or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets.

When transaction price provides the best evidence of fair value at initial recognition, the financial instrument is initially
measured at the transaction price and any difference between this price and the value initially obtained from a valuation
model is subsequently recognised in the statement of profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument
but not later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

Any difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the amount that would be determined at that date using
a valuation technique in a situation in which the valuation is dependent on unobservable is not recognised in the
statement of profit or loss immediately, but is recognised over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis or
when the instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable. Assets and long positions
are measured at a bid price; liabilities and short positions are measured at an asking price. Fair values reflect the
credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Company and the counter
party where appropriate. Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other factors, such as liquidity
risk or model uncertainties; to the extent that the Company believes a third-party market participant would take them
into accounting pricing a transaction.

Financial assets and liabilities based on the accounting classification with their carrying values and fair values are
tabulated below.

As at 31 Ashad 2076

Fair value Fair value
through | through other .
profit or | comprehensive Amortized | Total carrying .
loss income cost amount Differenc
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Financial assets
Measured at fair value through PL - - - - -
Measured at fair value through OCI - 200,000 - 200,000 -
Measured at amortised cost - -1 700,856,922 | 700,856,922 -
Reinsurance receivables - - - - -
Other Insurance receivables - - - - -
Total - 200,000| 700,856,922 701,056,922 -
Financial liabilities
Reinsurance payables - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - - -
Continue...
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As at 31 Ashad 2076

As at 32 Ashad 2075

Financial assets

Measured at fair value through PL
Measured at fair value through OCI
Measured at amortised cost
Reinsurance receivables

Other Insurance receivables

Total

Financial liabilities
Reinsurance payables
Other financial liabilities

Fair value Fair value
through | through other .
profit or | comprehensive Amortized | Total carrying .
loss income cost amount Differenc
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
- -| 656,954,062 | 656,954,062 -
- -| 656,954,062 | 656,954,062 -

35.1 Determination of fair value of Financial Insturment

Fair value measurement

The following table analyses financial assets measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised.

As at 31 Ashad 2076

32 Ashad 2075

Financial assets at
fair value through OCI

Quoted equities
Unquoted equities
Quoted mutual funds

Financial assets at
fair value through PL
Quoted equities
Unquoted equities
Quoted mutual funds

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

200,000( 200,000 -

200,000( 200,000 -

56 : Annual Report 2075-076



Tiferd SoRal SeAR oA fod.
Sanima General Insurance Ltd.

Sanima General Insurance Lt¢d.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

36

36.1

36.2

Employee Defined Benefit Obligations

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs

Defined contribution plans
Employees' Provident Fund 8,040 376,611
Contribution to Citizen Investment Trust Fund

8,040 376,611

Recognition and measurement of employee defined benefit obligations

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The liability recognised
in the financial statements in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
as at the reporting date. The value of defined benefit obligation is calculated by a qualified Actuary as at the reporting
date, using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method as recommended by NAS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rate, salary increment rate and balance service period of
employees. Due to the long-term nature of the plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

The re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability which comprises actuarial gains and losses are charged or
credited to the statement of other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The assumptions based

on which the results of the actuarial valuation was determined, are included in Note below.

Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Defined benefit plans - Provision for employee benefits

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

As at Rs Rs
Present value of unfunded obligation (Leave encashment) 1,689,016 -
1,689,016 -

Movement in the present value of the employee benefits

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs

As at 1 Shrawan -
Expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss 1,689,016 -
Payments during the year - -
Actuarial loss recognised in statement of comprehensive income -
As at 31 Ashad 1,689,016 -

36.2.1 Expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

For the year ended Rs Rs
Interest cost - -
Current service cost 1,689,016 -
1,689,016 -
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36.2.2 Expenses recognised in statement of comprehensive income

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

For the year ended Rs Rs

Actuarial loss - _

36.2.3 Valuation of employee benefit obligations

As at FY 2075-76 liability for leave encashment is valued under the Projected Unit Credit method by Trans Value
consultants, a firm with actuarial expertise as required by NAS 19 - Employee Benefits.

36.2.4 Principal actuarial assumptions used

37

Acturial information FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Discount rate 6.50% N/A

Salary increase 3.33% N/A

Mortality rates Nepali Assured Lives N/A
Mortality 2009

Withdrawal Rate 1% N/A

Retirement age 58 years N/A

Risk Management Framework

(@) Insurance and financial risk

(i)

Insurance risks

The Company principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts : motor, Fire and
engineering, marine, Micro, Laghu and miscellaneous. Risks under non-life insurance policies usually cover
twelve months duration.

For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from natural disasters, climate changes
and terrorist activities. For longer tail claims that take some years to settle, there is also inflation risk.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and
geographical areas. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry sectors and geography.
Furthemore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing cliams, regular detailed review of
claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are established to
reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing an
promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can
negatively impact the business. inflation risk is mitigated by taking expected inflation in to account when
estimating insurance contract liabilities. The Company identifies and categorises risks in terms of their
source, their impact on the Company and preferred strategies for dealing with them.

The Company has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts as
well as the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic events (e.g. flood
damage).

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components.

- Product design risk
- Underwriting risk

- Reinsurance risk

- Claims risk

Continue...
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Operational risk

Mitigation strategies

Product design risk

The Company issues non-life insurance contracts
such as motor, fire and engineering, marine and
miscellaneous. Product designs of the portfolio
may be outdated due to changes in the climate
leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends
of people due to changing life styles and steady
escalation of costs in respect of spare parts in
the industry.

Diversification of insurance contracts across a large geographical areas.

Variability of risk is improved by careful selection and implementation
of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are
diversified in terms of type of risk.

Strategies are periodically reviewed and suitable action taken.
Constant watch on internal and external factors that may impede planned
objectives.

Underwriting risk

Underwriting risk generally refers to the risk of
loss on underwriting activity in the insurance. In
insurance, underwriting risk may either arise
from an inaccurate assessment of the risks
entailed in writing an insurance policy, or from
factors wholly out of the underwriter's control.

Improve knowledge and skills of the underwriting staff.

Statistical databases are maintained on loss making clients to ensure
such clients are strategically declined.

Review profitability, pricing, terms and conditions of various products.
Financial authority limits are in place for underwriting clearly prescribing
the limits to underwrite based on the sum assured and risk.

37.1 Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Reinsurance risk

Reinsurance risk refers to the inability | Global trusted and stable portfolio of reinsurance companies which are rated highly
of the ceding company or the primary | used for reinsurance placements.

insurer to obtain insurance from a
reinsurer at the right time and at an
appropriate cost.

Very close and professional relationship is maintained with all reinsurers.
Provisions are made for long outstanding reinsurance receivables.

Outstanding reinsurance receivables are reviewed on a monthly basis to ensure
that all dues are collected or set-off against payables on time.

Claims risk
The risk of actual claims or the timing
thereof, may differ from expectations.

Claim intimation is done through the call centre which works on 24x7 basis.
Customers are advised of consequence of inadequate sum insured and excesses.

Cross check information from various issues and segregation of approval and

payment duties.

Qualified independent actuary carries out independent valuation on a quarterly
basis in order to assess adequacy of reserves.

Significant outstanding claims are subjected to periodic reviews by the management
and the Board of Directors.

Concentration risk
Fiscal Year ending 31st Ashad 2076

Portfolio Gross premium | Premium Ceeded | Net Premium
Aviation - - -
Agriculture 11,694,757 9,355,806 2,338,951
Engeneering 10,204,398 10,486,580 (282,182)
Fire 42,463,283 36,686,410 5,776,873
Marine 10,401,959 9,122,046 1,279,913
Micro 362,178 - 362,178
Miscellaneous 22,800,258 18,951,808 3,848,450
Motor 98,290,476 36,873,854 61,416,622
Total 196,217,309 121,476,504 74,740,805
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37.2 Risk Management Framework (Continued)

The Board of Directors of the Company has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board is ultimately responsible for monitoring compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and
procedures. The Board is assisted in these functions by internal audit department and the Audit Committee. The
internal audit department undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures,
the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of policyholders and monitor them closely to ensure that
the Company is satisfactorily managing affairs for policyholders' benefit. At the same time, regulators are also
interested in ensuring that the Company maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen liabilities
arising from economic shocks or natural disasters.

As an insurer, the operations of the Company are subject to regulatory supervision of the Insurance Board of Nepal.
The Company has taken necessary action to comply with and complied with applicable regulations throughout the
year.

Nature and extent of risk arising from financial instruments

The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments.
e Credit risk

e Liquidity risk

e Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks and the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks.
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37.3 Risk Management Framework (Continued)

e Credit risk/loan risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms and arises principally from the Company’s
premium receivables, reinsurance receivables, investments in debt securities and deposits with financial institutions
such as time deposits, demand deposits, etc.

Management of credit risk - Insurance receivables

The company has no any policy for providing Credit facility against issued policy document as per regulatory
restriction.As a result of rigourus follow up of outstanding premiums, the policies which are not settled within the
approved credit periods are cancelled on a regular basis. The Company checks the status of the outstanding premium
before settling claims to reduce the credit risk. The Company has implemented an impairment review for premium
receivables periodically and provide for the same based on the results of the review.

Management of credit risk - Reinsurance receivables
Credit risk with regard to reinsurance receivables is mitigated by selecting the reinsurers with higher credit ratings
and reviewing their ratings periodically. The following table depicts the reinsurers of the Company with their ratings.

Reinsurer Rating | Issuing agency
HANNOVER RE A+ AM Best

GIC Re A- AM Best
KENYA RE BB+ AM Best

GIC BHUTAN RE NA NA

ASIAN RE BBB- AM Best

EAST AFRICA RE BB+ AM Best

OMAN RE BBB- Fitch

SIRIUS INTERNATIONAL BBB S & P Global Ratings
TUNIS RE BBB- AM Best

NEW INDIAASSURANCE A- AM Best
NEPAL REINSURANCE CO LTD. NA NA

Management of credit risk - Financial investments (Except listed equity securities)

The Company evaluates the credit ratings of the respective investee and/or respective issue prior to the investment
decision are made. In addition, the Company focuses on tolerable levels concentration risk and portfolio monitoring
in line with the Company’s risk appetite.

Management of credit risk - Cash at bank
The Company's exposure to credit risk with relevant to cash and cash equivalents is minimal since these balances
are maintained at banks and finance companies with high credit ratings.
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Risk Management Framework (Continued)

e Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events, there is
also a liquidity risk associated with timing differences between gross cash out-flows and expected reinsurance
recoveries.

Management of liquidity risk
The following controls are in place to mitigate liquidity risk which is faced by the Company.

i. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that funds available are adequate to meet claim
payments to its policyholders and to ensure operational expenses are paid when they are due.

ii. Main sources of the Company’s funding are capital and gross written premium. The Company also maintains
a portfolio of readily marketable securities to strengthen its liquidity position. Investment durations are diversified,
depending on the cash flow needs of the Company and maturity periods are regularly reviewed. Cash flow
analysis is done prior to investments are made.

iii. The Company's treaty agreements with reinsurers contain clauses permitting the immediate draw down of funds
to meet claim payments should claim events exceed a certain agreed size.

iv. Availability of a stand-by overdraft facility to be used only in the event of an emergency.

v. Determining the maturity profiles of insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets based on the estimated
timing of net cash outflows from recognised insurance liabilities.

vi. Planning for all large cash outflows in advance and making necessary arrangements to ensure the availability
of funds to meet such outflows.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The Company monitors the liquidity position of the Company to asses funding requirements. Liquid assets include
cash and short term investments and bills purchased. The Company also monitors maturity profile of its assets and
liabilities.

Maturity profiles

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the financial assets, financial liabilities and insurance contract
liabilities. Unearned premiums have been excluded from the analysis as they are not contractual obligations. The
Company maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the event
of an unforeseeable interruption of cash flow. The Company also has committed lines of credit that it can access
to meet liquidity needs.
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37.5 Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Contractual maturities of undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and financial liabilities are provided below.

As at 31 Ashad 2076

0-3 312 1-2 Over2| No Stated
Financial assets/liabilities Months Months Years Years Maturity Total
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss - - - -
Listed equity securities - - - -
Fair value through other comprehensive income - - - 200,000.00 200,000
Amortized cost - - 2,611,868 - 2,611,868
Fixed deposit 10,013,274 698,245,054 - 708,258,328
Government bond - - -
Reinsurance receivables 9,955,330 - - 9,955,330
Other Insurance receivables (gross) 24,084,376 - - 24,084,376
Cash and short term deposits 78,079,871 - - - - 78,079,871
Total 122,132,851 698,245,054 - 2,611,868 200,000 823,189,773
Financial liabilities
Reinsurance payable - 25,191,723 - 25,191,723
Other financial liabilites - 6,589,430 - 6,589,430
Total - 31,781,153 - 31,781,153

37.6 Risk Management Framework (Continued)

As at 32 Ashad 2075

0-3 312 1-2 Over2| No Stated
Financial assets/liabilities Months Months Years Years Maturity Total
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss - - - -
Listed equity securities - - -
Fair value through other comprehensive income - - - -
Amortized cost - - - -
Fixed deposit - 656,954,062 - - 656,954,062
Government bond - - - -
Reinsurance receivables - 140,884 - - 140,884
Other Insurance receivables (gross) - - - - -
Cash and short term deposits 51,410,461 - - - 51,410,461
Total 51,410,461 657,094,946 - - 708,505,407
Financial liabilities
Reinsurance payable - - - -
Other financial liabilites - 1,878,275 - 1,878,275
Total - 1,878,275 - 1,878,275
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37.7

Risk Management Framework (Continued)

o Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Market risk is an aggregation
of,

a) Interest rate risk

b) Currency risk

d) Equity price risk

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates. Floating rate instruments typically expose the Company to cash flow interest risk, whereas
fixed interest rate instruments expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

Management of interest rate risk

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk faced by the Company, the management follows the guidelines set out in
the investment policy which is regularly reviewed by the Investment Committee. Among such guidelines, following
guidlines included to mitigate the interest rate risk faced by the Company.

ii. Forecasting and monitoring future cash inflows and outflows when formulating investment strategies.

iii. Relative amounts of the each portfolio will be determined by the Company's liquidity position, availability of
market values, individual secuities' risk/return profiles.

Sensitivity analysis - Interest rate risk

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk reflects the changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument at the reporting date in response to assumed movements in market interest rates. The sensitivity of
reported fair value of financial instruments is monitored by assessing the projected changes in the fair value of
financial instruments held by the portfolios in response to assumed parallel shift in the yield curve by +/- 100 basis
points and +/- 200 basis points.

PBT* - Profit before tax

b) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company's principal transactions are carried out in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.) and hence, its exposure to
foreign exchange risk arises primarily with respect to reinsurance recoveries and US Dollars denominated assets
developed out of aforementioned recoveries.

Management of currency risk
The currency risk faced by the Company is minimal since no material liabilities or assets were recorded on foreign
currency denominated as at the reporting date.

Sensitivity analysis - Currency risk

The sensivity analaysis of currency risk indicate the currencies to which the Company had significant exposures
as at 31 Ashad 2076 and the effect to the gains/(losses) in case of a market exchange rates up/drop by 1%.

Continue...
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37.8

38

38.1

39

39.1

39.2

c) Equity price risk

The risk of fluctuation in fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument due to a change in market prices,
other than those occurring due to interest rate risk or currency risk, is referred to as equity price risk. Accordingly,
the equity price risk affects the Company's investments in equity instruments.

Management of equity price risk

In order to mitigate the equity price risk faced by the Company, the management follows the guidelines set out in
the investment policy. The Company's investment policy guides the management to set/monitor objectives and
constraints on investments, diversification plans as well as limits on equity exposure. Compliance with the policy
is monitored and the exposure and instances of non-compliance are reported to the Board of Directors. The policy
is reviewed regularly for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment. The Company manages its equity price
risk by investing in relatively less volatile sectors and in different sectors.

Sensitivity analysis - Equity price risk
Sensitivity analysis for equity risk reflects how changes in the fair value of equity securities at the reporting date
will fluctuate in response to assumed changes in equity market prices.

Operational Risks

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls
fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead
to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by intiating a rigorous control
framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls
include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education
and assessment processess, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes in environment,
technology and the industry are monitered through the Company's strategic planning and budgeting process.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Net change in operational assets and liabilities Rs Rs
Net change in reinsurance receivables 91,335,483 140,884
Net change in receivables and other assets 39,486,967 7,840,923
Net change in insurance liabilities 170,651,819 251,428
Net change in other liabilities 77,483,860 5,432,381

378,958,129 13,665,616

Events After the Reporting Date

Dividends

The company has not proposed any dividend during the year ended 31st Ashad 2076.

Capital Commitments and Contingencies

Capital commitments
The company doesnot have any Capital Commitments as on 31st Ashad, 2076.

Contingencies

In the opinion of the Directors and the Company’s lawyers, pending litigation against the Company will not have a
material impact on the reported financial results or future operations of the Company.

All pending litigation for claims have been evaluated and adequate provisions have been made in the financial

statements.

The Company does not have contingencies other than related with insurance policy as on 31st Ashad 2076.
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40

Acturial Data for Gratuity and Leave Encashment

The Nepal Accounting Standard 19 on “Employee Benefits” issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of Nepal
has been adopted by the Company as under:

Defined Benefit plans in respect of Leave Encashment will be as per actuarial valuation.

Brief calculation pattern of Acturial Valuation Working as disclosed hereunder:

2075-76

2074-75

S.N.

Particulars

Annual Leave
Encashment and Sick
leave (Non Funded)

Annual Leave
Encashment and Sick
leave (Non Funded)

(Income)/ Expenses Recognized In Income Statement
Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Net Acturial Losses/(Gains)

Interest Income on Plan Assets

(Income)/Expenses Recognized In Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss
Return on Plan Assets (Greater)/Lesser than discount rate
Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss Alc

Change in Present Value Obligations
PV of Obligation at beginning of the year
Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Acquisitions (credit)/ cost

Benefit paid

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss

Liability at the end of the year

As per GAAP

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Asset at Beginning of the Year
Acquisition Adjustment

Interest Income on Plan Assets

Return on Plan Assets Greater/ (Lesser) than discount rate
Contribution by Employer

Benefit paid

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Asset at End of the Year

Amount Recognized in Statement of Financial Position
Present Value of Obligations at Year End

Fair Value of Plan Assets at Year End

Funded Status Surplus/(Deficit)

Unrecognised Acturial (Gain)/Loss at Year End
Unrecognised Past Service Cost

Net Asset/(Liability) Recognised in Balance Sheet

1,689,016

1,689,016

1,689,016

1,689,016

(1,689,016)

(1,689,016)

Continue...
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2075-76

2074-75

S.N. Particulars

Annual Leave
Encashment and Sick
leave (Non Funded)

Annual Leave
Encashment and Sick
leave (Non Funded)

6 | Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate

Salary escalation rate
Retirement age
Remaining Working Life
Mortality

Wuthdrawal Rate

7 | Employee information

Average Attained Age (Years)

Total Monthly Salary

Average Monthly Salary

Total Monthly Salary eligible for Compensated Absences
Average Monthly Salary eligible for Compensated Absences
No of Members

Total Leave Balance (Days) = Annual + Sick Leave
Average Leave Balancen (days)

6.50%
3.33%
58 years

Nepali Assured Lives
Mortality 2009
11.00%

31.97
2,663,890
34,596
2,835,750
36,828

77

1,592
20.68
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42 Reconciliation Statements
421 Reconciliation of Profit or loss

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 32nd Ashad 2075 | 31st Ashad 2076
Profit/Loss as per GAAP (A) 22,933,459 36,260,281

Adjustments due to NFRS Implementation
1. Unearned Premium (185,887) (98,340,285)
2. Premium ceded to reinsurers (un-accrued) 140,884 81,380,153
3. Un-accrued Fee and Commission income net of tax (37,636) (15,941,067)
4. Increase (Decrease) in Investment Income (Government Bond) - -
5. Increase (Decrease) in Other operating and administrative expenses - 7,302,642
a. Reinsurance Commission Expense net of tax - 5,248,354
b. Agency Commission expense net of tax - 2,054,289
c. Leave Encashment Expenses - =
d. Reversal of Provision for other losses - =
e. Net Increase/Decrease in Staff Bonus - (0)
6. Increase (Decrease) in income tax expense due to NFRS implementation 13,501 5,088,040
a. Deferred tax income/(expense) on URR 55,766 29,502,086
b. Deferred tax income/(expense) on Reinsurance Assets (42,265) (24,414,046)
c. Deferred tax income(expense) on Leave encashment - -
8. Change in reversal of provision for loss on investment - -
9. Change in Incurred but not reported - (10,611,467)
10. Deposit Premium (18,658) 18,658
Total Adjustment (B) (87,795) (31,103,326)
Profit/(Loss) as per NFRS [A+B] 22,845,663 5,156,955

NFRS Profit amount differ from GAAP is due to remeasurement of following items namely deferred goss premium
income, deferred premium ceded to reinsurer, deferred fee and commission income, deferred Reinsurance commission
expense, deferred agent commission expense, Change in staff bonus as per NFRS profit, change in outstanding
claim, change in incurred but not reported and deposit premium.
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42.2 Reconciliation of Equity

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 32nd Ashad 2075 | 31st Ashad 2076

Total Equity as per GAAP(A) 721,074,545 757,334,826
Adjustments due to NFRS Implementation

1. Fair Value Reserve on Investment Available for Sale - -

2. Acturial Reserve on Gratuity - -

3. Net Increase/(Decrease) in Retained Earning (69,138) (20,579,655)

a. Premium amortization - o

b. Gratuity - -

c. Leave Encashment - -

d. Unearned Premium Reserve (130,121) (68,968,320)

e. Reinsurance Asset 98,619 57,064,726

f. Employee Bonus provision - (0)

g. Reversal of other Provision - -

h. Unearned Commission income (37,636) (15,978,703)

i. Reversal of provision for loss on investment - -

j. Agent commission expense - 2,054,289

k. Reinsurance commission expense - 5,248,354

4. Outstanding claim - -

5. Incurred but not reported - (10,611,467)

6. Deposit Premium (18,658) -

Total Adjustment (B) (87,796) (31,191,123)

Total Equity as per NFRS [A+B] 720,986,749 726,143,703

NFRS balance of equity differ from the GAAP balance is due to remeasurement of following items namely:
unearned permium reserve created as per LAT report, Reinsurance Assets created on premium ceded to reinsurer,
deferred commission income and expense recognized as liability and assets and Deposit premium.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

43 Reconciliation of Cash flow statement

For the year ending 31st Ashad 2076

Particular As per GAAP | As per NFRS Difference
Cash flow from Operating Activities 46,050,260 35,393,081 (10,657,179)
Cash flow from Investing Activities (24,506,539) 1,289,602 25,796,141
Cash flow from financing Activities - (0.00) 0)
Net change in cash and cash equivalent 21,543,721 36,682,683 15,138,962
Opening cash and cash equivalent 8,869,314 51,410,461 42,541,147
Closing cash and cash equivalent 30,413,035 88,093,144 57,680,109

The change in cash flow from operating activiteis as per GAAP and as per NFRS is due to following reason:

1. Change in current Assets as per NFRS

Change in current liabilities as per NFRS

Deferred gross premium income

Deferred premium ceded to reinsurer

Deferred reinsurance commission income

Deferred Agent commission expense

Deferred Reinsurance commission expense

Change in income tax income/expense as per NFRS
Change in IBNR

© o N~

The change in cash flow from Investing activiteis as per GAAP and as per NFRS is due to following reason:

1. Reclassification of fixed deposit having more than 3 month as financial assets at amortized cost

The change in cash flow from financing activiteis as per GAAP and as per NFRS is due to following reason:

1. Change in Retained earning due to NFRS
2. Change in reserves due to NFRS
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AT FAfqH! e dqeT AT AT faEae sfausl g8 ATRiE L0 Jiaed IEHdArs aEated
T ATAIH] AT AT [EATEHT SMGUhl T THHATS Al dTHT Frredl R /AT a9 9T Aaarael
FITHITHT STEHTS T TRUHT g | T AT TUHT GHT GGIHT gFAT TThl AR oI AT ATRT
TUHT 4THT TTITIHT AT ATRT SRS TH TRUH G |

FHHART IUGTH qUT feoqT qTud e Hifd

FFATTH] FHAT fAlTTHE qTAR FHART IUSH, AATHY, [q87 a1 o= Fiqdr aqa gaedr T

it fazus @ |

() Sug«
FFIAH! FHART [ATIHTEAT ATAR FHANS AfafG GaT TR THH] ATIRAT ITETT bl AL

TR AT G @ i@ Al SRTETH] THH Fhd I I FITHAT STFAT T AN [A3THT G |
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(@) fegr amua srawT
FFTR FHAT [ATTHEAT ATAR ST FHAREEH Fad °R [a8T ATTART THHB! AT T Al

fauerr g |

V. VehTEUG ST e fifa
FHTTIT ATATHIH! AT STFATATTAA (AT THT AAHTT AR FALAT T AT BH G |

9T, UNER G q@IEH Alfer
IRTETF 9T d F=aTe @elesals HHHT Garae Ud TUH G9 oel TRUH 3 |

qu. T asl gwawdt @eEe
fTa a¥ e @=eT AR AT dehie EUTaHT s@rsd TR S |
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Afoldll TR SRR A fod.

fercher feramuritr geafeun waT wrmi femofiee

q. grdTfaa giicage
o) T[T AT ARTAT & Sl vl g |
an 9d wj%r EISEEGI (Underwriting Commitments) =ull

ST Q%

T) AT AR 9T aTedele dTHE JUT ATAT UVl dR ATHE aucd RN ARl - |

%) SHeEel a1 SIHEHH TR (TR RSN -2 |
3) A AT - |

2. VT T ST gt AU qIRIcA WEATEH IGT AT BT STHTRET

AhTAT TR ST AT aad IIcah] AT [od qbl A T GHATHT TRUHT qRTHL ATAR TRTH

T | AT AIHEE, 0%, B HTH QL) 1 Faed] AT Gied TS ATl ATHITT AT FFIATR]

SITRT Q% HTTLTAS B9 ATIH THH AT A9 =T TRTHT G |
3. dWaar grufaAT smger Hiwaar qur faagee

FEIHT GG TRN EAETHT BTAqTH F (qdTG8e THUHT |

8. @i, qorer qur R geafaer arfr afvger gfvagar
FEIATS ol ST qr feor Feafeerr ot & gfqegar T g9 |

Y. WIS Grfeud qgrreT afvg fasht aRPTaEeT A
¥) @iE TRUST FH] @THeT I T9TH - & |
o) fersnT UeRT TRt SRTAT TS ATTE - B |

. a9 e ashst aIfveaT @it e fafr firat fager faasor awysr @ |
() I ASHIVST AT TN IAUHTR G |

RRCE T oSt
AT FepEeebl el e -] %%0,000,000
faeprar darewart WEa fard 95,300,000 -
fo FFIeTeedl Heal Hard 99,400,000 -
qfeeter fafwde &, &1 WA 300,000 -
e qar faxir wamen srnfaer 97/ feaar 3,400,000 -
ST BT, 300,000 £40,000,000
(@) famt/frat fagar wmedier faaror Tever

Tq asf I an
AT T TAAT AT - -
aifors Sepewepl Hedl e ¥0,300,000 -
faeprer Srepeeept HEdl ferT - -
fora wFreTE@al Heal a8 = -
ST 80,900,000 -
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& Wisgra faame grawmT srfud d@/ fadier e e few weaw st sgrRr

Frafera g% 7 fadr gearE feqra faar wivger g

YHTEUG ST HTEAT

(%) ATHE /AAHEET (d [ oAbl fedra qeaeady aeiead d¥eh / TAAHEbH TR Aledd feard Hard
T G |

FHFAIDT GaTad o GATAGHI (el ATTh al GEATHT HUST HRER

FEIATHT FATAF a7 AATAFET GEATeId Tk AT FEATET F BRI TRTHT S |

FHFOATS STORAT FFITT YRETUTHT fagst skutet e, i @ sirfaer
TG qUHT AIAT F [T aAfF HOT AEHT |

HFIRIA HY TCAT JATUTTA UGl IRebT ST, qT el gehT WHTUTUS It &0 aie! rd. ¥ W Grawdt feawuret
Y STRIGHT ST.a. EXHT HY HRAWT SATST AU GIAIUREDT T AW 1., AT WTATHT HUHT VA

AT, AT R09Y /0y, FFHEH! FX TATHT THIT T7 I THFH G |

ftrat @ RIS ufvwAToT T HROT

T TUAT . §,20%,43 ATERF FA [aHTIeH hall TRURN g | fqwTeTesd Ral WEl FRUES TIIFR B |
(@) fafqaer SR [qHTs T Terua |

(@) faHTer@dT g8 TeH SEH gl |

() FIeT THTURT FROTS T Afgwd TrAIRT [qHTeE T TR |

(9) GedATHEH! e e Araearg fhdal TRuE 3 |

UG I dft G AR |

=[ThT SIHEd ANH AHTAT 9T (Paid in advance), HThTHT 9T &4 dT%( (Call in arrears) T ST TRUHT a7
q: fsepTeTe ARUeT SraRet faarer - 8 |

fasr greg grafqar Tq AMfd® aUaEH (3.) T 9 A% 99 (3. ¥,00,5%¥q) @I (Amortization) ATGTH B |
FAUNIAT RN ATIATT ATMEXHT FRIATHT a0 - B |

AT A et

[ASITa ST AFATaH & ATHT bl L0 YA TFH AFH SIM@H ATTATAT FTIRTHT B | Td T9H!
IEAT AL THH TF a9 AR AATGUH G | TR ATHGE ATHT dh 1T a9 ATl THHAT AR AT
TRTeRr B o

Frafeud UgTeT 9T FRER (Related Party Transactions)

TH  FHHAR] I AALATIAA] FRATA AAL, FoFes T THE HAPRT AgdHd I TR S

AT ST S A e fHfeq R0 /93/03 ¥
AT TE FHR SATHT TATAE fAfT R0 /93/03 ¥
ST G A ATHEH FTeA® fafa 0w4 /93 /03 T
1 7. HIfore AT e Fepfeqer =Tl fafq o004 /93 /03 T¥
T @9 TS ATASH qemet fafa 0wy /93/03 3@
1 1. &A= FHAR ATl AR fafa 30wy /9303 3G
1 fafaq 5 REIEET fafa o9y /93/03 f@
1 FEH TS FATeA® fafq 0wy /9303 3@
T TTHEIYHETE ATaT = FATAh fafa 004 /93/3Y 3fE
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A& AU TUTUSRIgEars Uet kg iyl qur giaues:
TG FTHT TETTF Faehag ATae HeT Jawh JeqTHE FHARIEsdTs e T 91 a19d %, 43,223,090
T TRTE B |

e ARG UGS HEHT FRETR

FEAT TAT H&A ATLATIAHT TINIFRIEE ard AU FRIERE] HHT T8 a9 [F @=ee qhAl TRIH G |
THH T AT

FRarRer e a9 asl I A

TATAH AT TSF AATHN TR 330,000 -

9T ATATT / STATALT S5 TATHT AR 95,000 -

HET SAARATIAHT TRTAFEE G A e T FRIEA THHT |

AT a1 T

F AT eebebl  IANT AT ok ATqd ATHT FATTATS ATHTAT T T @3 TR G | Al e arad

QAAHEATE ATAT HUHT HgT T ATl Td® STHIH] AT AT AT @9 o@rgd A0S g |

FHART AT AU

T9 ATTYF a9 FT ATAHl G ATHRENE 0 FAqA g9 THT & 939300 FHAT AMd ATEIT TRUH G |

Profit Commission
qAfaHFATE TR a7 FARHEAT YT JUATS Profit Commission ATFETAT died TRUHT @ | IF ATMIEF a9 Profit
Commission aTTd %. ¥, 933,393 AR FAMITH B |

[ &Y (Deferred Tax)
TR Y FFI(T T Ml AT ATAE 39,2095 b1 forer o) (A=ATar w@al 8

faa=ur a9 aqEf I TS
TR %Y YA (Deferred Tax Assets)

fer Twafa - -
EREHBEEEDI RY,0¥3 RERTIA
faraT araa s 4 0%,\50Y -
TFAT VP HY GFafa (Deferred Tax Assets) B09,88T LERAA
T &Y gIRIcd (Deferred Tax Liabilities)

fee Teafaar RUY URR q9z,349
AT WO &Y gIRIca (Deferred Tax Liabilities) 88,492 90T, 399
gT W & I 3,098 998,699
AETfqUTil SRET HTS

Tg qYH ATRTEATE A(SHIS [EATaAT ARFT THEHAATE 40 FIATd gAATIH THH &, §,599,0%% AIRUH B |

JUGTH HIST
FHARIE IJTTT TIT [9aT A9 2TFedT TEATIHT (Accrual) HATITRHAT F@TSH T I@TSH! G |

AIATTHAT TR Teh a9 [TAT TS Albd ATMTHIATS ATbTAlT T |1 ATT Ufeg TS Flebd AMTHTATS
STEMRTEATT SV ITHTHT S@TEUeh! 3 |

TATeATE (Heha® FYATHT afRord T TE@TSTHT 3 |
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Arfoidlr 3okl 36 e fet.

ST Q9
UHY qADTEEe
ama.

* 9. | faerur L CEIF 09Y/00 | 098/09Y
q. | 9T ag =, Y933, 5% | 99,09% Y ¥Y
3. | 9 Hemn e 19,000,000 19,000,000
3 | 9fq R fRarEr I z. 905 903.09
Y. | @& ATRT 2. ]/RXORE]|  RRAB,¥%0
Y. | ufq R s (EPS) . Y 3.3
<. | gfaq R wmater (DPS) . - -
o | gfd R F9R T (MPPS) s, - -
S. | o9 ATRTAI AT (PE Ratio) ERRic] - -
R. | @7 ArHTek / FA ATHE gfeera 35 ¥9.5R

q0. | @& AR/ FHA HAHTeH gfeera 95 5,3/&.ER
9. | A SAHTIeH /T FF gfeera R 0.0¥
9. | TN T FHSATETE AT /B AT T FoAl gfeTa ] yR¥
93. | qETHE FHT AT/ FHA [T gfeera 3¥ %R
9%, | IS @ /FA ATHIToF gfeera M 9,29%.9%
qu. | T wfaear @t @/ E&a dTeed gfeera R -
9g. | T SfreRar dear e 9¥ -
Q0. | HH=TT HE e R 9%.00
5. | FEATATH FET e 9% q.00
9%, | FHER G /G G gfqera ELY 3¥.4R
0. | FHERN G/ HHA FE i3 ¥q5,%¥3|  qR9,]93.00
1. | TN G AT FTET THH /STHTAT AUEHT AT THH gfera R -
R, | R & Al STATHT F@T/TF T SHIT AR STATH e gfeera ¥ -
3. | B FHTAA TEH AATTER T FeATHT 99,599 9%.00
Y. | T T AR AUH! ATHAGH] G€T /T a5 HIT TEh ATATAG R GET giaeTa ¥o -
Y. | FTET IRET AHTCEET AT/ FA FIIH el AHTerad Jer gfeera q -
3. | e AT gfaera 9.93 .04
9. | FHA AATAHAT 13 gfqera %, ¥5%.03 -
5. | gz faH OeFAT qig gfeTa $%,R9R.5% -
R, | AT g4 gfeera R.9% -
30, | ST ¥ @R AT FEATAH AAT gfaera GR.EY R¥.50
3. |@F faHTeTes ¥ ISl AT gfeera q0.]0 0.0%
33 | (AT TATTHT SIRAT AN TAT ATATHI) T @& STHAT T gfera .Y -
33, | QTR AURT TN T GE ST FH gfeera 0.0% -
3¥. | HETHES SRTHT I ATFT THH T GAATHEATS ST T ooTehebl TohH gfeera - -
3. | gg feaa et 7 1d A9 a9 @7 e AR e gfeera A4 -
3%, | 3ET AT gfaeTa 3y, -
30 | gE @ AT giasTa 4%.09 3%5.05
3. | HFeTTE! FAT gfeera 3s.45) (RR.9%)
3R | STFRT @ ST gfaqera 9.5 3,R5R.05

%O, | AMIETE A T GE Ao EIRHE) RY.0% 3,9%%. ¥R

¥q. | ISt giawa gfeeTa LYY ¥
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firear: A, Yolst/es, Tt Frefra framor woyrd et Ay

g |fm wW aeiEr i 0uk/o¢/Re (T, Wl o/R0WE ) T TT HERHHT

sfgdo |

Hivea fadig faor hs saeifiea dhven wer wdfafd o | ot w
wftfeent wffedr @ft 99 g9 STOH TEIH A0/ 08 FI Wt I FET
aniifemert ferefta ferercor wermurm e aitfomen vdee wii i i e fofarmr
FHFH! TS |

3, e HUSiEE auT STl YT It SWEE F3] & |
3. el QAT sk e e & |
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¥
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! A WIS ST < @ gfd g T |
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. siieehen! STTfteh qo aTEd oraT Tlteret st Hpades gur T & |

%0, wliwaret wiufiane fasia faaror e wot fafee & (@) f i mmamor

" 74

o, reeerTd gediaE mEr

A 3993, FIVSH-G0, AGATL, ATH, TH: of-44 39087, YYISeYs TITHT: of-yu%oiy, 219 fiF A 4e8o-o0t-utsey
P.O. Box Mo.: 2172, Kupandole-10, Lalitpur, Nepal, Phone: 01-5521079, 5538743, Fax: 01-5520119, Toll Free No.: 1660-01-54789

URL: www.bsib.org.np, E-mail: bsib@wlink.com.np, info@bsib.org.np

IIf¥% URida 00y-00g : 9%



arferetl STelReT SoANR e foT.
Sanima General Insurance Ltd.

3T, AT, Q09Y/09¢ &Y fafeer faaRur ¥-yrdige feafefa ar
fismeT Jame afrfaare Tid TR

9. HHEGHT TAATH HUSIREIET TAT GTal HTHTAT UEHAT 3F THTEHTRT qa13e g |
UeATR: FFIATHT AT HUSIRIS(EF TAT ATAT TR FOHATATS A% FE THATAFRT FTATSE AN ST
5 A~|

2. e YAETAT UERAT THTaERRT aaTSe & |
TeITR: FFIHIH] GATH GBRAT TRy a°1g AiepUH! STl IRSed |

3. WHEDT AT ATl SUTd = el Wi Jord & g |
WO FFIAT FATATHT AT HH THT AUH Alodwdl ATS(H FA MGUHl &l | ARTHT THEEHT HFIATR
FRIAR FEIGT Aedieg ATAT HAT: T8 A |

8. WH&®H AT G Iod el Wid qod 3&d & |
WO FFIATRT YRIFE SRUAT 9@l FATAdes a1d AAaaardh] SAaedd G HRU e g
TET B TTHT BT | ARTHT faeedT FeT STHITeF AT JETET AaRIIT @9 7 g ATHRT TRISTe] |

y. dwaer wEr ufveror Hfaars wTaEt a9 s STie foaestor qutet 9ge a e g |
TeITR: FHIHIHT @l GiReTor ARfqers T avrs (MR YRaT =t Tl ST RISTe |

g. WHGW WHATAATE FIRT HUHT SHBDH] QOIHT oG (1T, Q09Y THITSTH Tl I g |

v AT fafere, o0y aEifSH AeTS reratae T AN SR RISTE! |

v. drea gfaee 9T fer wwufa afvg/ o Tl fefim amfse fer grafa afvg & & )
TR HFATA ATATTETE RN TR FFIT @R (Halre st @fvg Tiee |

€. SHed SHETRT IUGH T fagT aTud AT IRET THH G BISHT gIiaaT I g |
TEITIR: FFIATC FHARIG] SUAH q4T faaT aT9q ST Tl YA gg HITAT AMGAT AT SATFNT TRISTS |

B. e JfmiNe T I Q@ USRI ScATYaT Hithades QUIR a6 & |
WCATR: STI¥eh 9T STed ol TEIeTehel AeaTUHT Bhadeesh! b TIH IR TIEH AHFRT TRISTS |
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oft waree afdfe
FIferAT FERE SR f.
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forr: wfafafr forees e aw |

HETe,

et AAYL/AAL/TAL TSI A ..o T AT ®
TH HHID] AIRGAID! eRIae A 008 ATS T F1 f&7 g1 Qs aifvis
AR GHHET W SURYT g Bohe ol Foiad Tg9rll g1 Tha 4uals St a9l #R1[8H dhare
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Branch Offices

Biratnagar Branch
Bargachhi-5, Biratnagar
Tel: 021-463551/463552
Email: brt@sanimageneral.com

Birgunj Branch
Linkroad, Ghantaghar, Birgunj
Tel: 051-520054/0520076
Email: brji@sanimageneral.com

Sundhara Branch
Sundhara, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4251504/4251548
Email: sdr@sanimageneral.com

New Baneshwor Branch
New Baneshwor, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4780907
Email: newbaneshwor@sanimageneral.com

Kawasoti Branch
Thana Chowk, Kawasoti -2
Tel: 078-540935
Email: kwt@sanimageneral.com

Butwal Branch
Sukhanagar-8, Shukrapath, Butwal
Tel: 071-540492, 540531
Email: btwl@sanimageneral.com

Province 1

Birtamode Branch

Bhadrapur Road, Birtamode, Jhapa

Tel: 023-545010/544514
Email: btm@sanimageneral.com

Province 2

Itahari Branch
Itahari-6, Sunsari
Tel: 025-580411

Email: itr@sanimageneral.com

Janakpur Branch

Province 3

Lalitpur Branch
Lagankhel, Lalitpur
Tel: 01-5546728/5549328
Email: ptn@sanimageneral.com

Dhanusa, Bhanu Chowk
Tel: 041-525799
Email: jnk@sanimageneral.com

Bhaktapur Branch
Sallaghari, Bhaktapur
Tel: 01-6614022/6618422
Email: bkt@sanimageneral.com

Narayanghat Branch
Pulchowk, Bharatpur-1, Narayanghat

Tel: 056-533066/533042

Province 4

Pokhara Branch
Newroad, Pokhara
Tel: 061-620610
Email: pkr@sanimageneral.com

Province 5

Nepalgunj Branch
Puspalal Chowk, Nepalgunj
Tel: 081-524243/525389

Email: npj@sanimageneral.com

Province 7

Dhangadi Branch
Bhansar Road, Dhangadi
Tel: 091-417749/417750
Email: dhn@sanimageneral.com

Email: ngt@sanimageneral.com

Damauli Branch
Byas-3, Damauli
Tel: 065-560396

Email: dml@sanimageneral.com

Jeetpur Branch
Jeetpur-4, Kapilbastu
Tel: 076-550441
Email: jtp@sanimageneral.com
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